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i
					

The Virginia Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program provides funding to eligible units of local government to address critical community development needs, including housing, infrastructure, and economic development.  This Program has been administered by the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) since 1982.  CDBG funds are made available to DHCD by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

CDBG Community Improvement Grants (CIGs) are designed to aid those communities with the greatest community development needs in implementing projects which will most directly address these needs while maximizing citizen participation.   All CDBG projects must target at least one of the three national objectives:
1) Give maximum feasible priority to activities which will benefit low- and moderate-income families,
2) Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight, and 
3) May also include activities which are designed to meet other community development needs having a particular urgency because existing conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the community.  

There are five types of CIG assistance:  
1. Competitive Grants,
1. Community Development Innovation Fund Grants,
1. Community Economic Development Fund Grants,
1. Construction-Ready Water and Sewer Fund Grants, and
1. Urgent Need Open Submission Grants

The largest category of CIG funding is Competitive Grants.  Competitive Grants, as the name suggests, are available annually on competitive basis.  Competitive Grant assistance is available to Virginia Community Development Block Grant eligible localities (see APPENDIX A for a listing).

Questions regarding Competitive Grant proposal development or about this RFP should be directed to:

Chris Thompson, Policy Manager
Chris.Thompson@dhcd.virginia.gov
(804) 371-7056

Keith Sherrill, Policy Analyst
Keith.Sherrill@dhcd.virginia.gov
(804) 371-7055

Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development
Project Management Office
600 East Main Street, Suite 300
Richmond, Virginia 23219
(804) 371-7061
Fax (804) 371-7093
711 TDD
http://www.dhcd.virginia.gov
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iv
					

DHCD has revised the application for the CDBG Program for the 2012 Competitive cycle with the hopes of streamlining the application process.  The revised RFP is available electronically in a fill-in Word format at:
http://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/CommunityDevelopmentRevitalization/Community_Development_Block_Grant_Program.htm
CDBG Program Design
This Request for Proposals and all other guidance on CDBG proposal development must be used in conjunction with the 2012 CDBG Program Design.  The Program Design is the final statement of Virginia’s community development objectives, its projected use of funds, its method of fund distribution to local governments, and to present the core CDBG elements for the Virginia Consolidated Plan.
In revising this RFP to make it shorter and more efficient efforts have been made to eliminate repeated language in the Program Design and the RFP.  It is critical that applicants utilize the Program Design to gain an understanding of the requirements of the CDBG program.  The 2012 CDBG Program Design is available at the following link:  2012 CDBG Program Design
[bookmark: _Toc314560581]
Instructions for Completion
This application is in the format of a locked Microsoft Word Document that should allow you to tab through the required items to fill in your responses. Applicants are not limited to the space provided, as the fillable fields have no word-count restrictions.
If the fill-in form does not work for you or you need to modify one of the tables you can unlock the form by selecting: 
· Review Tab/ Protect Document / Restrict Forms and Editing and selecting “Stop Protection” (Word 2007)
· View/Toolbars/Forms and deselecting the lock icon on the Forms toolbar (earlier versions of Word). 
 
If you do not have access to Microsoft Word, please duplicate this format in another word processing program.
[bookmark: _Toc314560582]Submission Requirements


v
					

All Competitive Grant proposals and supporting information must be submitted to the Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) by 5:00 PM on MARCH 28, 2012 OR POSTMARKED BY THIS TIME AND DATE FOR DELIVERY via Federal Express, United Parcel Service, Priority Mail via the U.S. Postal Service or any other carrier for delivery within 2 business days following the proposal deadline.  Proposals not delivered or mailed accordingly may be disqualified. 
An ORIGINAL and SIX copies of ALL proposals must be submitted.  ALL pages of the proposal must be numbered.  Larger attachments such as PERs, market studies, etc. may be submitted separately. Please include at least 3 copies of these. 
All proposals must be assembled using binder clips and NOT three-ring binders, booklet binding or other methods.  Please contact DHCD with any formatting questions about your proposal.
All applicants must submit completed responses to the General Proposal questions (Numbers 1 - 25) and appropriate attachments as detailed on page 15 of the proposal.  The project type specific questions must be fully completed for the project type or types included in the proposal.  This proposal is available electronically in a Word document form at: 
http://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/CommunityDevelopmentRevitalization/Community_Development_Block_Grant_Program.htm


[bookmark: _Toc314560583]Project Types

There are five general project types under the Competitive Grant program:  
1. Comprehensive Community Development, 
1. Economic Development, 
1. Housing, 
1. Community Facility, and 
1. Community Service Facility.  

Each Competitive Grant proposal must target at least one project type with all activities meeting a CDBG National Objective.  The total amount of funding available for Competitive Grants in 2012 is expected to be approximately $9,040,000 (please note this amount will be reduced at the time funding decisions are made to provide funds for previously awarded multi-year projects).
For detailed information on each project type, please see pages 31- 47 of the 2012 CDBG Program Design . 


Section I – General Questions
All applicants must complete this section. 


2012 CDBG Competitive RFP								1 


[bookmark: _Toc314560584]Part 1 – General Information
1. 
2. Applicant Information
	Applicant Name:      

	Chief Elected Official:      

	Chief Administrative Official:      

	Local Government Address:
      
	City/County:
      
	Zip:
      

	[bookmark: Text29][bookmark: Text30][bookmark: Text31]Local Government Phone Number: (   )     -     

	Local Planning Development Commission: Lenowisco Planning District Commission

	Project Name:      

	Project Location:      

	[bookmark: Text32]DUNS number:      

	[bookmark: Text33]U.S. Congressional District Number:   

	[bookmark: Text53]State House of Delegates District(s):    

	[bookmark: Text54]State Senate District(s):      

	[bookmark: Text34]Population of Applicant Locality:      



	Project Type (check one):
|_| Comprehensive Community Development
[bookmark: Check2]|_|Economic Development
	
[bookmark: Check3]|_|Housing
[bookmark: Check4]|_|Community Facility
[bookmark: Check5]|_|Community Service Facility




	National Objectives: Please check the Objectives applicable to your project and provide the approximate amount of CDBG funds attributed to each:

	[bookmark: Check6]|_| Low and Moderate Income Benefit
	[bookmark: Text48]$     

	|_| Urgent Needs
	$     

	|_| Elimination of Slum and Blight
	$     



	Project Primary Contact
Name:      
Title:       
Phone: (   )     -     
Email:      
	Application Preparer Contact
[bookmark: Text23]Name:      
Title:      
Phone: (   )     -     
Email:       



3. Active CDBG Projects
	[bookmark: _Toc313620597][bookmark: _Toc314560585]PROJECT NAME
	[bookmark: _Toc313620598][bookmark: _Toc314560586]YEAR AWARDED
	[bookmark: _Toc313620599][bookmark: _Toc314560587]AMOUNT OF AWARD

	[bookmark: Text35]     
	    
	     

	     
	    
	     

	     
	    
	     





4. Project overview and funding Summary
Please provide a brief overview of the proposed project, including location, identified need/opportunity and products. 
	     



Please fill in the chart below with a description of the project funding source (local, federal, state, private, other), the amount from that source, the percentage of total project funding that source represents, and a description of the current status of the funds (pending, secured, etc.). 
	[bookmark: _Toc313620600][bookmark: _Toc314560588]SOURCE
	[bookmark: _Toc313620601][bookmark: _Toc314560589]AMOUNT
	[bookmark: _Toc313620602][bookmark: _Toc314560590]%
	[bookmark: _Toc313620603][bookmark: _Toc314560591]STATUS

	Requested CDBG
	$      
	     
	     

	[bookmark: Text65]     
	$      
	     
	     

	     
	$      
	     
	     

	     
	$      
	     
	     

	     
	$      
	     
	     

	     
	$      
	     
	     

	     
	$      
	     
	     

	Total
	$ 0
	0 %
	



5. Affirmation Statements
By checking these boxes the applicant is affirming the following statements:
	[bookmark: Check8]|_| Applicant is currently eligible to receive the full amount that is being requested and if this project is awarded, this would not cause the applicant to exceed the multi-contact limitation of $2.5 million in open, active contracts. 

	[bookmark: Check9]|_| Applicant agrees to send responsible parties, to include and relevant subcontractors, to all mandatory DHCD-sponsored training events, to include the Construction Management and Grant Management workshops, and to provide representation at all management team meetings. 



6. Certification and Signature
To the best of my knowledge and belief, information in this proposal is true and correct and the proposal has been duly authorized by the local governing body; citizen participation requirements have been met; and the proposal has been submitted for Planning District Commission Review. 
	[bookmark: Text36]Name:      

	Title:      

	Signature: 
	
	[bookmark: Text37]Date:      

	To be signed by the Chief Administrative Officer. For regional projects, by each participating locality. 



[bookmark: _Toc314560592]PART 2 – PROJECT INFORMATION
Please summarize the key findings of any reports, as attached copies may not be completely reviewed (see page 15 for attachment instructions).
7. Project/service Area Description
Please identify the specific boundaries (streets, natural features, local or regional boundaries) of the project area and discuss why and how these boundaries were chosen. Provide an overview of the characteristics that are important to understanding the proposed project, such as physical features, land use patterns, availability/condition of infrastructure, density, demographics, etc.  Please attach a map following the guidelines on page 18. 
	[bookmark: Text59]     



8. PROJECT AREA SELECTION
How was the proposed project area selected compared with other areas/needs in the locality? How were the boundaries of the project area determined?  Describe the boundaries of the proposed project area and identify any physical or other features that create a natural division between the project area and surrounding areas. For projects involving service to homes and/or proprietors (housing, community facility, business district revitalization) discuss any properties adjacent to the service area and why they were excluded.
	     





[bookmark: _Toc314560593]PART 3 - PROJECT OPPORTUNITY AND DEMAND
9. Community Development Priorities
Please describe how this project relates to the applicant locality’s overall community development needs and opportunities. How were community development needs/opportunities identified? Is this project a priority in relation to other community development opportunities and needs? Why? How will other unmet needs be addressed? Please discuss how this project supports or aligns with your comprehensive plan, strategic development plans, or any other community revitalization plans or feasibility studies.
	     



10. Identification of need/Opportunity
Please provide specific and quantified evidence to demonstrate the opportunity/need for the project and describe how they were identified (i.e. a neighborhood survey, Preliminary Engineering Report, housing inspections) and when data was collected. For example:
The recently annexed area of North Enterprise is the only area in the town not served by public utilities. A 2011 survey revealed that a) 20 out of 45 houses had frequent septic failure; b) 10 homes experienced fecal coli form contamination of wells; and c) 4 homes do not have indoor plumbing. Residents are interested in being a part of the project and there is an opportunity to improve their health and quality of life by connecting them to public utilities. 
	[bookmark: Text66]     



11. Stakeholder Involvement
How were project area residents involved in the development of the project? Do they support the project? How do they support it? What level of activity and involvement have they had in the project? Include evidence of community support (e.g. meetings, petitions, letters). Specifically identify community “sparkplugs” who will actually be engaged in the implementation of the project. 
	     



12. Connection to Regional Efforts
Please describe the project’s relationship to other local, regional or statewide efforts. If this project is a regional effort, identify partnering localities and attach documentation of their participation and support. 
	     



13. Green Techniques
Please discuss how “green” building/energy efficiency or other environmentally friendly practices are incorporated into your project. Be specific. What are the expected benefit or savings to the project?
	[bookmark: Text69]     





[bookmark: _Toc314560594]PART 4 - PROJECT PRODUCTS AND OUTCOMES
Please list in precise terms the actions or activities of the proposed project, known as the products or outputs, and the measured results from those activities, known as the impacts or outcomes, on the needs discussed above.  For example, a project product could be the acquisition and clearance of two abandoned, blighted structures and the project outcome might be that property values have increased 5%. 
	14. [bookmark: _Toc313620607][bookmark: _Toc314560595]Project Products 

	These are activities that take place during the project, e.g. loans to 8 eligible entrepreneurs.

	1.
	[bookmark: Text25]     

	2.
	[bookmark: Text26]     

	3.
	     

	4.
	     

	5.
	     

	6.
	     

	7.
	     

	8.
	[bookmark: Text60]     

	9.
	[bookmark: Text61]     

	10.
	     

	11.
	     

	12.
	     

	13.
	     

	14.
	     



	15. [bookmark: _Toc313620608][bookmark: _Toc314560596]Project Outcomes 

	These are activities that occur as a result of the project, e.g. 8 persons become financially self-sufficient.

	1.
	     

	2.
	     

	3.
	     

	4.
	     

	5.
	     

	6.
	     

	7.
	     

	8.
	[bookmark: Text62]     

	9.
	[bookmark: Text63]     

	10.
	     

	11.
	     

	12.
	     

	13.
	     

	14.
	     




[bookmark: _Toc314560597]PART 5 - CAPACITY AND READINESS
16. Readiness
15a) Please discuss what activities have been undertaken to date. Describe efforts at organizing the management of the project. Have regulatory issues been addressed? Have all agreements and other demand documents been completed (user agreements, participation agreements, landlord agreements, etc.)? Have acquisitions been started? Be sure to discuss any issues that could threaten the timely completion of the project. 
	     



15b) Environmental Review
Please provide the status of the Environmental Review for this project. Indicate which steps have been completed, if any, which steps are in progress, and when the review is anticipated to be completed. Please summarize the key findings, do not assume attached copies will be completely reviewed (See page 15 for attachment instructions).
	[bookmark: Text56]     



15c) Please provide a detailed timeline with important project activities and the date they are expected to occur, such as when bid documents will be completed, when bid documents will be released, when competitive bids are due and when a notice to proceed will be issued, when construction will begin and the expected project completion date. 
	[bookmark: _Toc313620610][bookmark: _Toc314560598]DATE
	[bookmark: _Toc313620611][bookmark: _Toc314560599]PROJECT ACTIVITY

	     
	     

	     
	     

	     
	     

	     
	     

	     
	     

	     
	     

	     
	     

	     
	     

	     
	     

	     
	Expected End Date



17. Capacity
16a) Please identify the specific individuals, by name and/or title and affiliation that will be responsible for the implementation of the project and their roles.  What is their experience with CDBG-funded projects? What are the roles of stakeholder organizations/individuals? Have all roles and individuals been identified and filled?
	     



16b) Procurement
Have necessary professional and non-professional services been procured?  Discuss the plan to fill any necessary roles. 
	[bookmark: Text57][bookmark: _Toc314145547][bookmark: _Toc314145410][bookmark: _Toc314145275][bookmark: _Toc314145134][bookmark: _Toc313620612][bookmark: _Toc314560600]     



18. Conflict of Interest
Please identify any potential conflict of interest situations. For example, do any Town Council members own property in the project area? Do any Housing Rehabilitation Board members have a property targeted for rehabilitation assistance? What actions have been performed to address Conflict of Interest issues?
	[bookmark: Text58]     



[bookmark: _Toc314560601]Part6 – Project Budget 

The following information provides guidance on Competitive Grant costs in general and how these costs are to be reflected in the project budget:
Interim Assistance
This category includes the costs of temporary assistance to alleviate harmful conditions in an area where immediate public action is necessary. Comprehensive Community Development or Housing Rehabilitation proposals
Economic Development
Private investment in Job Creation /Retention projects should be shown as a product. For Business District Revitalization, façade improvements, streetscaping, microloans and individual property acquisition should be shown as separate products. 
Housing
In Housing Rehabilitation projects, owner-occupied rehabilitation, investor-owner rehabilitation and substantial reconstruction should be shown as separate products. In Housing Production projects, site improvements, infrastructure, and housing construction should be shown as separate products. 
Community Facility
For water and sewer projects, plant improvements, lines , and connection should be shown as separate products. 
Project Line Items
The following is an overview of eligible cost categories. Localities are encouraged to contact DHCD for guidance on cost eligibility


Administrative Costs
CDBG-eligible administrative costs are limited to 10% of the total CDBG award or as allowed in the 2012 CDBG Program Design . 

Architectural and Engineer/Design Costs
This includes the costs of completing the final design of engineered physical improvements. CDBG participation in engineering fees is determined using the fee schedule, which can be found in the RFP Forms zip file. 
Project Inspection Costs
This includes the costs of inspecting the construction of physical improvements and is determined using the fee schedule, which can be found in the RFP Forms zip file.. 
Acquisition Costs
This includes the costs of acquiring real property, including easements and fee simple purchases. Eligible costs include those required in adhering to the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act. Acquisition costs related to utility easements should be included in the water or sewer budget category. 
Relocation Costs
This includes the costs of relocation payments and assistance for displaced individuals, families and businesses. Eligibility is generally determined by the Uniform Act. 
Disposition Costs
This Category includes the cost of disposition through sale, lease or donation of real property and temporary management of property. 


Demolition/Clearance Costs
This category includes the costs of demolition, clearance, or removal of buildings or other improvements. 

Construction/Implementation Costs
This category includes the costs of construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or installation of improvements of facilities and/or direct costs of delivering a service. Proposals with the most current cost estimates will be in a more credible position. 

Other Costs
This category includes costs specific to a particular project or project type, such as Home Maintenance and Education Training in projects with housing rehab activities. 

Leverage
Local Match (actual or in-kind), which generally originates from an applicant locality, for design and construction activities and some supporting activities may be counted if expended on or after July 1, 2010. Non-local Match for design and construction activities may be counted if expended on or after July 1, 2011.

[bookmark: _Toc314560602]
BUDGET ATTACHMENTS
Please see page 18 for attachment instructions of required commitment letters, contracts, agreements, award letters, sources budget, derivation of costs worksheet or other cost/funding documentation.

Sources Budget
The amounts listed in this budget must be consistent with those from other sections in the application and from supporting documents, such as the Local Government Resolution. Specify each source of local funds, whether general revenue, bonds, loans or otherwise. Include a dollar amount for in-kind contributions where possible. 




19. Project Line Item Budget
Please complete the line item budget below with cost breakdown by project activity and identification of funding source. The budget must clearly show the activities where CDBG funds will be applied and the amount applied to each activity. If other DHCD funds are involved in the project, they must be broken out into separate column that identifies the funding source. Other leverage (local, federal, etc) can be combined in the Non-CDBG column. 
It is critical that cost estimates be very current. Housing rehabilitation costs must be based on walk-through inspections. 
Please use the form below which is an embedded spreadsheet. To enter information, right click on the budget below and select Worksheet Option: Open to launch the Excel spreadsheet. When you close out of the worksheet your changes will be saved in this document. After finalizing your budget information, print from the open workbook and attach the form in Attachment 1, as instructed on page 18. 

	





20. Derivation of Costs Worksheet
Provide detailed information on the costs of the proposed project. List, at a minimum, each product and its component cost elements. Preferably, list the cost elements of the components as well, showing itemization by line item or unit cost. provide the total cost of each item and identify the CDGB and non-CDBG portions of each. It is critical that cost estimates be very current. Provide detailed information on the source of the cost estimate and the date that estimate was provided. Housing rehabilitation costs must be based on walk-through inspections. 
Sample:
	[bookmark: _Toc314560603]Product
	[bookmark: _Toc314560604]Total
	[bookmark: _Toc314560605]CDBG
	[bookmark: _Toc314560606]Non-CDBG
	[bookmark: _Toc314560607]Source of Estimate
	[bookmark: _Toc314560608]Date

	Sewer Installation
	
	
	
	
	

	Construction
	
	
	
	
	

	9,000 LF of 8-inch sewer line @ $50/LF
	$450,000
	$ 400,000
	$50,000
	PER
	9/5/11

	5,000 LF of 2-inch force main @ $16/LF
	$80,000
	$50,000
	$30,000
	PER
	9/5/11

	4,175 LF of 6-inch service laterals @ $20/LF
	$83,500
	$0
	$83,500
	PER
	9/5/11



	[bookmark: _Toc314560609]Product
	[bookmark: _Toc314560610]Total
	[bookmark: _Toc314560611]CDBG
	[bookmark: _Toc314560612]Non-CDBG
	[bookmark: _Toc314560613]Source of Estimate
	[bookmark: _Toc314560614]Date

	[bookmark: Text80]     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     



[bookmark: _Toc314560615]Part 7 – Priority Alignment
Please explain how your project is eligible by meeting at least one of the three National Objectives:
21. Lowand Moderate Income Benefit
	[bookmark: Text14]     



22. Slum & Blight Removal
	[bookmark: Text15]dsfaf



23. Urgent Need
This is only applicable when there has been a Declaration of Emergency by the Governor or a Declaration of Severe Health Threat by the State Health Commission. Generally, Urgent Need projects are more appropriate for the Open Submission fund. See the 2012 CDBG Program Design for more information. 
	saasfsdsfsdf





[bookmark: _Toc314560616]Part 8 – National Objective Worksheet
24. Low and Moderate Income Benefit Projects
In the chart below, please fill in the results of your neighborhood or project area survey. This is required for all projects seeking LMI benefit. Please attach a copy of the survey instrument and results summary. 
	
	[bookmark: _Toc313620616][bookmark: _Toc314560617]HOUSEHOLDS (HH)
	[bookmark: _Toc313620617][bookmark: _Toc314560618]PERSONS

	Total population in project area
	     
	     

	Total number of LMI in project area
	     
	     

	Total LMI population / Total population (%)
	     %
	     %

	Total number surveyed
	     
	     

	Total number of LMI responses
	     
	     



For Comprehensive, Housing, Community Facility and Economic Development Job Creation projects please fill in the following Expected Benefits Chart for your project:
	[bookmark: _Toc313620618]PROJECT PRODUCTS
	[bookmark: _Toc313620619]HH SERVED
	[bookmark: _Toc313620620]LMI HH SERVED
	[bookmark: _Toc313620621]TOTAL PERSONS SERVED
	[bookmark: _Toc313620622]TOTAL LMI PERSONS SERVED
	[bookmark: _Toc313620623]LMI PERSONS/TOTAL PERSONS (%)

	Housing Rehab
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Housing Production
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Water
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Sewer
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Streets
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Drainage
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Jobs Created
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Other
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %



For Community Service Facility or other projects that do not fit the specifications in the chart above (i.e. target a broad service area), please specify in the chart below the number of people and households to receive measurable benefit; do not include those that receive passive benefit like recreation, general training, etc. List each expected service separately. 
	[bookmark: _Toc313620624][bookmark: _Toc314560619]PROJECT SERVICES
	[bookmark: _Toc313620625][bookmark: _Toc314560620]HH SERVED
	[bookmark: _Toc313620626][bookmark: _Toc314560621]LMI HH SERVED
	[bookmark: _Toc313620627][bookmark: _Toc314560622]TOTAL PERSONS SERVED
	[bookmark: _Toc313620628][bookmark: _Toc314560623]TOTAL LMI PERSONS SERVED
	[bookmark: _Toc313620629][bookmark: _Toc314560624]LMI PERSONS/TOTAL PERSONS (%)

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %


* LMI Benefit is based on unduplicated count of users (persons) and not on number of visits. 
25. Slum and Blight Elimination Projects
Please fill in the following Project Area Summary table with information for your project area and attach a copy of the assessment tool. 
	[bookmark: _Toc313620630][bookmark: _Toc314560625]Structure Type
	[bookmark: _Toc313620631][bookmark: _Toc314560626]Total #
	[bookmark: _Toc313620632][bookmark: _Toc314560627]# Occupied
	[bookmark: _Toc313620633][bookmark: _Toc314560628]# Unoccupied
	[bookmark: _Toc313620634][bookmark: _Toc314560629]# Blighted
	[bookmark: _Toc313620635][bookmark: _Toc314560630]#Blighted/
[bookmark: _Toc313620636][bookmark: _Toc314560631]Total # (%)

	Commercial
	15
	10
	5
	4
	27%

	Publicly Owned
	2
	0
	2
	2
	100%



	Choose an item.	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Choose an item.	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Choose an item.	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Choose an item.	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Choose an item.	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Choose an item.	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Choose an item.	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Choose an item.	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Other (specify)
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Other (specify)
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Other (specify)
	     
	     
	     
	     
	    %

	Total
	   0
	   0
	   0
	   0
	    %



	How many businesses are located in the Project Area?
	     



	How many businesses have closed within the last three years? 
	

	[bookmark: Text46]Number:      
	Percent of total businesses:      %

	
Approximately how many employees have been displaced as a result of these closings? 

	Number:      
	Percent of total employees:      %




26. all projects
Using the 2010 Census, please list the Census tracts for the area(s) to be served. If the area includes entire Census tracts, do not list individual block groups within such tracts. If the service area contains less than the total Census tract, you must enter the block groups covered by the service area. Follow this link for 2010 Reference Maps for Virginia Census Tracts. 
	[bookmark: _Toc313620637][bookmark: _Toc314560632]Census Place Code
	[bookmark: _Toc313620638][bookmark: _Toc314560633]Census Tract(s)
	[bookmark: _Toc313620639][bookmark: _Toc314560634]Blocks/Block Groups

	e.g. Essex County  057
	e.g. Tract 9506
	e.g. Block Group 1

	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     

	     
	     
	     


For all projects please fill out the following Compliance Charts with demographic information about race, ethnicity and households in the locality as a whole and the Project Area. 
	Information below is for the Locality


	[bookmark: _Toc313620640][bookmark: _Toc314560635]Ethnicity 
	[bookmark: _Toc313620641][bookmark: _Toc314560636]Total Number
	
	[bookmark: _Toc313620642][bookmark: _Toc314560637]Race
	[bookmark: _Toc313620643][bookmark: _Toc314560638] Total Number

	Hispanic or Latino
	     
	
	White alone
	     

	Not Hispanic or Latino
	     
	
	Black/African American alone
	     

	Total Population
	     
	
	Asian alone
	     

	
	
	
	Am. Indian/Alaskan Native alone
	     

	[bookmark: _Toc313620644][bookmark: _Toc314560639]Household Type
	[bookmark: _Toc313620645][bookmark: _Toc314560640]Total Number
	
	Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander alone
	     

	Female-headed
	     
	
	Am. Indian/Alaskan Native & White
	     

	Elderly
	     
	
	Asian and White
	     

	With Handicap
	     
	
	Black/African American & White
	     

	Total Households
	     
	
	Am. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African American
	     

	
	
	
	Other Multi-racial
	     

	
	
	
	Other Multi-racial
	     

	
	
	
	Total Population
	     




	Information below is for the Project Area


	[bookmark: _Toc313620646][bookmark: _Toc314560641]Ethnicity 
	[bookmark: _Toc313620647][bookmark: _Toc314560642]Total Number
	
	[bookmark: _Toc313620648][bookmark: _Toc314560643]Race
	[bookmark: _Toc313620649][bookmark: _Toc314560644] Total Number

	Hispanic or Latino
	     
	
	White alone
	     

	Not Hispanic or Latino
	     
	
	Black/African American alone
	     

	Total Population
	     
	
	Asian alone
	     

	
	
	
	Am. Indian/Alaskan Native alone
	     

	[bookmark: _Toc313620650][bookmark: _Toc314560645]Household Type
	[bookmark: _Toc313620651][bookmark: _Toc314560646]Total Number
	
	Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander alone
	     

	Female-headed
	     
	
	Am. Indian/Alaskan Native & White
	     

	Elderly
	     
	
	Asian and White
	     

	With Handicap
	     
	
	Black/African American & White
	     

	Total Households
	     
	
	Am. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African American
	     

	
	
	
	Other Multi-racial
	     

	
	
	
	Other Multi-racial
	     

	
	
	
	Total Population
	     




[bookmark: _Toc314560647][bookmark: _Ref314570890]Part 9 – Attachments
All proposals must include relevant Attachments. Attachments should be placed at the end of the completed proposal. Examples and templates for many of the following documents can be found online in the Competitive Grant RFP and Forms zip file where noted. 
at the links provided. 

Attachment 1 - Budget
[bookmark: Check29]|_| Budget (from Question 19)
[bookmark: Check30]|_|Derivation of Costs (If not in Question 20)
[bookmark: Check32]|_|Verification of Leveraging Funds - Include contracts, agreements, award letters, and other documentation which confirms the commitment of other funding to the project.  Identify contact persons and contact information for other funds in the project.  
Attachment 2 – Maps
[bookmark: Check72]|_| Project area maps, site plans, etc. 
Maps should be coded to match the information contained in the proposal narrative.  For example, mapped locations should list the street and be coded to show LMI status, level of blight, etc. 
Information of more than one type may be included on one map if the combined information is clearly legible and comprehensible.  Maps should contain the following:
1. A scale which is clearly marked on the map;
1. Boundaries of the locality (if applicable);
1. Boundaries of the project or service area where activities will be concentrated;
1. Location(s) of all proposed project activities, including water and sewer lines by type;
1. Location and numbers / names of streets and route numbers leading to and in the target area;
1. For projects involving housing rehabilitation, indoor plumbing provision, and/or water or sewer connections, provide the location of the impacted households within the project area.  Indicate which units are LMI-occupied, which are vacant, which have unknown occupants, which are in need of rehabilitation or substantial reconstruction, which are to receive water or sewer service, which are to receive indoor plumbing, and so on.  

Attachment 3 – Need Documentation
Include copies of surveys, needs assessments, PER’s, and other documentation supporting the project’s identified needs.  If surveys were conducted, include a copy of the survey, the survey script, and a summary of survey responses.  If sampling was used rather than surveying ALL households, explain the sampling methodology.  The summary of responses should include information on ALL QUESTIONS asked, especially those indicating a willingness to participate in a program or desire for a service.  
Previous surveys may be used if the survey was conducted after March 31, 2011, was for essentially the same project, and was developed in accordance with HUD Section 8 Income Limits or is clearly convertible to these limits.  Additional survey guidance is available online in the RFP Forms zip file. 
|_|Copy of the Survey Instrument 
|_|Survey Results Summary
[bookmark: Check33]|_|Documentation of Community Meetings (notices and advertisements for meetings, meeting minutes, sign-in sheets, etc)
|_| 3 copies of the Environmental Review 
[bookmark: Check61]|_|3 copies of the PER

Attachment 4 – Project Specific
[bookmark: _Toc314560648]Comprehensive Community Development
A Neighborhood Needs Assessment is critical to the preparation of a CCD proposal.  This Assessment will synthesize the input received from residents and other stakeholders from surveys and public meetings and the findings of professionally-prepared assessments of area physical conditions into a single, detailed written summary of overall area needs.  This Assessment must include information on general neighborhood characteristics and the condition of housing, water, sewer, streets, and drainage facilities.  It should also include pertinent information on sidewalks/pathways, solid waste/garbage, debris removal, street lighting, recreation, police protection, fire protection, and any other areas of need whether educational, cultural, or environmental.  
[bookmark: Check34]|_| Neighborhood Needs Assessment
[bookmark: Check62]|_| Other supporting information 
[bookmark: _Toc314560649]Housing Rehabilitation
Include documentation on the housing inspection methodology and summaries of the inspection results. Also include documentation of beneficiary demand, landlord participation, and financing mechanisms.  
[bookmark: Check39]|_|Summary of Inspections 
[bookmark: Check49]|_|Ability-to-Pay Summary (see methodology in the RFP Forms zip file).
[bookmark: Check50]|_| Landlord Participation (available in the RFP Forms zip file). 
[bookmark: Check71]|_| Housing Activity Table (available in the RFP Forms zip file)
[bookmark: _Toc314560650]Housing Production
Include appropriate attachments to demonstrate the demand and plan for the production.  The pro forma should be transparent to where the benefit of the CDBG investment to LMI persons should be easily seen.
[bookmark: Check43]|_| Market Study (3 copies)
[bookmark: Check51]|_| Pro Forma
[bookmark: Check52]|_|Development Plan
[bookmark: Check53]|_| Staffing and Operations Plan (rental) OR Plan for sale of unites (homeownership)
[bookmark: _Toc314560651]Community Service Facility
[bookmark: Check44]|_|Market Study (3 copies)
[bookmark: Check56]|_|Needs Analysis
[bookmark: Check57]|_|Documentation of demand (surveys, etc)
[bookmark: Check58]|_|Floor plan or site plan for the facility
[bookmark: Check59]|_|Letters of commitment from program/service providers
[bookmark: Check60]|_|Draft operations and management plan
[bookmark: _Toc314560652]Business District Revitalization
[bookmark: Check36]|_|Economic Restructuring Plan (3 copies)
[bookmark: Check37]|_|Signed Commitment Letters
[bookmark: Check68]|_|Blight identification/removal efforts
[bookmark: Check70]|_|Other supporting information (e.g. documentation of need for loan pool, additional project area information, etc) 
[bookmark: _Toc314560653]Other Economic Development
For projects with job creation or retention, include documentation on the needs of the businesses to be assisted and all business commitment letters.  For site redevelopment projects, include an inventory of current structures in the project area and their uses, the target area boundaries, whether or not water/sewer services are currently available, documentation of existing health and or environmental issues, and local economic development strategies.  For Development Readiness, document the existing barriers to development.
|_| Business Commitment Letter(s)
[bookmark: Check63]|_|Certification Letter from VEC or other partner
[bookmark: Check64]|_| Economic Development Strategy (3 copies)
[bookmark: Check46]|_| Documentation of existing health or environmental issues (Site Redevelopment)
[bookmark: Check73]|_|Site Inventory (Site Redevelopment)
[bookmark: Check69]|_|Documentation of development barriers (Development Readiness)
[bookmark: _Toc314560654]Community Facility
[bookmark: Check47]|_| User Agreements (available in the RFP Forms zip file)
[bookmark: Check54]|_|Approval Letters (for permitting, PER, etc)
[bookmark: Check55]|_| PER 
[bookmark: Check74]|_|Survey Results Table (from Question J-7)

Attachment 5 – Assurances/Certifications
Each applicant must provide a copy of its Competitive Grant proposal to the local Planning District Commission for review.  Include a copy of the transmittal letter here and any correspondence received from the Planning District Commission prior to proposal submission.
Include a copy of a resolution passed by the local governing body of the applicant giving the chief administrative official authority to complete, sign, and submit this proposal.  The resolution must contain the following:
1. That the locality wishes to apply for Virginia Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds;
1. The project type and title;
1. The amount of CDBG funds requested;
1. The amounts of local, state, or federal funds that are part of the total project cost;
1. That the chief administrative official is authorized to sign and submit all appropriate information necessary to apply for CDBG funding; and,
1. That citizen participation requirements have been met by holding at least TWO public hearings, advertising both as appropriate and with at least one other form of public notice.
1. That, in LMI benefit projects, the project will meet the National Objective of providing benefit to LMI persons and that there will be a specific projected number of LMI beneficiaries (number of jobs, number of houses improved, etc).
The resolution should also include special information related to certain project types:
For Regional projects – Include copies of resolutions from each locality authorizing participation.  Also provide copies of the completed first page of the Competitive Grant forms from each locality which should reflect the same information from each locality but for the MULTI-CONTRACT LIMITATIONS and the CERTIFICATION AND SIGNATURE.
For projects with Business District Revitalization or Site Redevelopment products – Include statements acknowledging the requirement that CDBG slum and blight removal activities occur in accordance with Title 36, Article 7 of the Code of Virginia and that the locality will, if necessary during implementation, develop a Redevelopment or Conservation Plan and contract with a Virginia Redevelopment and Housing Authority to implement the plan. 
For projects with Development Readiness products – Include the locality’s recognition that Development Readiness activities will be structured as a loan to the locality and its commitment to secure the CDBG investment through a bond, letter of credit, or other appropriate measures.
The executed Citizen Participation Assurances and Certification, General Assurances and Certification, Drug Free Workplace Assurances and Certification, and Applicant Disclosure Report should be inserted in this Attachment.  Original copies should be placed in original proposal copies and photocopies should be placed in other proposal copies.

[bookmark: Check26]|_|Local Government Resolution (see Sample on next page)
[bookmark: Check22]|_|General Assurances and Certification (see RFP Forms zip file)
[bookmark: Check23]|_|Drug Free Workplace Assurances & Certification (see RFP Forms zip file)
[bookmark: Check24]|_|Applicant Disclosure Report (see RFP Forms zip file)
[bookmark: Check25]|_| Documentation of two Public Hearings (See Appendix B – Citizen Participation)
[bookmark: Check75]|_| Documentation of submission to Planning District Commission




SAMPLE RESOLUTION

	Be it resolved that, pursuant to two public hearings, LOCALITY NAME wishes to apply for AMOUNT of Virginia Community Development Block Grant funds for PROJECT TITLE.
	
Whereas LIST AMOUNTS AND SOURCES OF OTHER FUNDS will also be expended on this project, it is projected that NUMBER AND TYPE OF BENEFICIARIES will result from the implementation of this project, of which NUMBER will be low- and moderate-income persons.
		
	Be it further resolved that CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIAL is hereby authorized to sign and submit appropriate documents for the submittal of this Virginia Community Development Block Grant proposal.








[bookmark: _Toc314560655]SECTION II – PROJECT TYPE QUESTIONS


[bookmark: _Toc314560656]COMPREHENSIVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL
Comprehensive Community Development (CCD) projects are projects that target substandard housing and at least one other eligible CDBG activity to address the needs within a small community.  The emphasis of CCD projects is addressing the housing conditions of the community.  Other activities may be undertaken as appropriate and as identified through a neighborhood needs assessment.  These projects are not intended to primarily focus on deferred maintenance of infrastructure. Any CDBG activity must, on its own, qualify as being eligible for CDBG funds. 
CCD projects that include at least two eligible significant activities (significant activities must amount to at least 20% of the CDBG budget) are eligible for up to $1,000,000 in CDBG funding.  Projects with three or more significant activities (significant activities must amount to at least 10% of the CDBG budget) are eligible for up to $1,400,000.
Applicants for CCD projects must complete the CCD section, the Housing Rehab section, and any other sections that apply to their significant activities .See page 32 of the 2012 CDBG Program Design for additional information on CCD projects.
Identified Needs/opportunities
A-1. CCD Projects are intended to address housing and other neighborhood needs using CDBG and non-CDBG funding. For each of the project needs/opportunities identified on Page 6, clearly explain the extent that it will be resolved by this project (ex, 24 homes were identified as in need of rehabilitation assistance, 20 homes [83%] will be rehabilitated). Identify which of these needs will be resolved using CDBG or a combination of CDBG and other funds and which are being addressed using local means or other measures.
	     


A-2. CCD projects are not intended to primarily focus on deferred maintenance of infrastructure.  If included as a CDBG-funded activity, discuss any reasons why community infrastructure has not been maintained and why CDBG funding is necessary. 
	     


A-3. Explain any remaining needs that are not addressed by this project or as identified above.  What steps will be taken to address these items?
	     


A-4. Discuss why any streetscape (sidewalks, lighting, streets) improvements are necessary to the community. What is the condition of the streetscape and why has it not been maintained? Identify the plan for the on-going maintenance of the streets.
	     



CDBG-funded Street Improvements
If the project includes CDBG funded street improvements, please answer the following:
A-5. Identify the streets that are targeted for improvements with CDBG funds. Will this ownership change (i.e., streets taken into VDOT system)?
	     


A-6. If CDBG funds are to be used explain what was done to identify other sources and discuss why CDBG is the best alternative. 
	[bookmark: Text77]     



[bookmark: _Toc314560657]Housing Proposals
Housing Rehabilitation
CDBG assistance is provided to improve LMI-occupied housing units to DHCD Housing Quality Standards.  Housing projects targeting housing rehabilitation activities:
1. Are eligible for up to $1,000,000 in CDBG assistance.  
1. Must target housing rehabilitation needs within a single, well-defined project area. 
Housing Rehabilitation proposals must include documentation that each unit targeted for rehabilitation has been inspected to some extent to assess potential rehabilitation costs.  Housing inspections can range from a walk-through inspection of systems and components to a detailed, checklist-driven inspection of the entire house.  The documentation appropriate for walk-through inspections is a table or spreadsheet identifying the house and the total estimated cost of rehabilitation overall and by system / component.  The documentation appropriate for detailed DHCD Housing Quality Standard (HQS) inspections is a construction write-up and detailed cost estimate.  Proposals with the most current cost estimates will be in a more credible position as DHCD evaluates the authenticity of project costs. Assistance is limited per house, see page 42 of the 2012 CDBG Program Design for more information.   
Housing Rehabilitation proposals should include documentation of the willingness of owner-occupants and investor-owners to participate in housing rehabilitation activities. 

Housing Production Assistance
CDBG assistance is available in support of the development of new single- and multi-family housing units targeted for low- and moderate-income persons.  CDBG funding is applicable to most project costs, including final design and construction costs, in projects which will adaptively reuse existing structures for housing.  These projects are eligible for up to $700,000 in CDBG assistance.  In new construction projects, CDBG assistance is limited to the design and construction of site improvements.  Funding for new construction must generally be obtained from local or other resources.  
DHCD reserves the right to work only with select Housing Production projects that demonstrate true need and demand and which clearly show CDBG as an appropriate and necessary source of funds.  Where CDBG funds will be used for the creation of new affordable housing units and will be utilized for onsite improvements, CDBG funds will only be available as a loan.  The loan terms for projects using other funding mechanisms will be negotiated between the applicant and DHCD.  
Housing Production proposals must include a Market Study which, among other items, identifies the target population of the housing units proposed and those within this population which will, or have expressed a strong interest in, taking occupancy of these units once completed. 
All housing production projects must demonstrate a clear local need for additional housing units, provide evidence of significant local demand for the additional units, and target the development of housing units of a quality and quantity which will meet local needs and demands.  
Housing Production proposals targeting rental units must show specific examples of various financing scenarios.  These scenarios must demonstrate the impact on the LMI tenants’ rent using differing terms for the CDBG funds in the project, including grant funds, loans at different rates and different terms, etc. See page 43 of the 2012 CDBG Program Design for additional information.
[bookmark: _Toc314560658]Housing Rehabilitation Proposals
Housing Inspection
B-1. Were all housing units within the project area inspected?  Describe the process used to inspect the houses in the area, including who completed the inspections, when they took place, etc.  Were full HQS inspections completed or were abbreviated walk-through inspections done on a portion of the units? Please also include as an attachment the Housing Activity Table (example available in the RFP Forms zip file). 
	     



Housing  Summary
B-2. In the Housing summary tables below provide the specific numbers of houses in the project area and targeted for benefit from this project.  
Project Area Totals
	
	[bookmark: _Toc313620657][bookmark: _Toc314560659]Total # Units
	[bookmark: _Toc313620658][bookmark: _Toc314560660]# Substandard Units
	[bookmark: _Toc313620659][bookmark: _Toc314560661]Total # Persons

	
	Project Area
	LMI
	Project Area
	LMI
	Project Area
	LMI

	Owner Occupied

	Single-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Multi-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Mobile Homes
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Renter Occupied

	Single-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Multi-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Mobile Homes
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Vacant

	Single-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     
	
	

	Multi-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     
	
	

	Mobile Homes
	     
	     
	     
	     
	 
	 

	Total
	   0
	   0
	   0
	   0
	   0
	   0


Substandard Units
	
	[bookmark: _Toc313620660][bookmark: _Toc314560662]# LMI Substandard Units
	[bookmark: _Toc313620661][bookmark: _Toc314560663]# of Persons in LMI Substandard

	
	Total
	For Rehab
	Total
	For Rehab

	Owner Occupied

	Single-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Multi-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Mobile Homes
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Renter Occupied

	Single-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Multi-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Mobile Homes
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Total
	  0
	   0
	   0
	   0


Activity by Occupancy Status
	
	[bookmark: _Toc313620662][bookmark: _Toc314560664]# LMI Cannot Rehab
	[bookmark: _Toc313620663][bookmark: _Toc314560665]# SUBSTANTIAL Reconstruction

	
	Total
	Persons
	Total
	Persons

	Owner Occupied

	Single-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Multi-Family
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Mobile Homes
	     
	     
	     
	     

	Total
	   0
	   0
	   0
	   0



	
	[bookmark: _Toc313620664][bookmark: _Toc314560666]To be Rehabbed
	[bookmark: _Toc313620665][bookmark: _Toc314560667]To be Demolished

	Vacant
	
	

	Single-Family
	     
	     

	Multi-Family
	     
	     

	Mobile Homes
	     
	     

	Total
	   0
	   0



Homeowner Creation
	
	[bookmark: _Toc313620666][bookmark: _Toc314560668]Total # of Units
	[bookmark: _Toc313620667][bookmark: _Toc314560669]Total # of Persons

	Renter Occupied
	
	

	Single-Family
	     
	     

	Multi-Family
	     
	     

	Mobile Homes
	     
	     

	Total
	   0
	   0



B-3. How were the targeted homes prioritized for rehabilitation assistance?
	     


B-4. For homeownership creation, discuss the plan for Housing Counseling services and pre-purchase education for homebuyers.  Who will provide this training?  How will buyers be located and qualified?  What type of waiting lists exists for purchase of these types of properties and where, in the qualification process, do these persons fall?
	     



Eligibility
B-5. Are investor-owners participating in this project?  Describe the process for determining eligibility of investor owned units and the agreement in place with the owners.  Identify which investor owners have signed participation agreements in the Itemized Housing Table. 
	     




[bookmark: _Toc314560670]Housing Production Proposal
Project Need/Opportunity
C-1. How was the need for the proposed type of housing determined?  Detail needs assessments, surveys, market studies, etc. that have been completed.
	     


C-2. What is the level of demand for the proposed type of units at the proposed costs?  Document this demand.  Discuss the reasonableness of the expectation that LMI households will be interested in, qualified for and otherwise able to meet this demand.
	     


Costs
C-3. Detail the costs to beneficiaries and show how the CDBG investment will directly reduce costs and therefore benefit LMI occupants of the property with a pro forma that clearly shows the difference in completing the project with CDBG funding versus other financing options.
	     


C-4. For rental projects, provide the financial projections for the ongoing operation and maintenance of the property.  These projections should be shown for a minimum of 5 years.
	     


C-5. For homeownership projects, how will the CDBG funds be used to subsidize the unit cost? Will CDBG be offered as a grant, loan, recorded as a soft second cost, etc.?
	[bookmark: Text75]     


Homeownership
C-6. For homeownership creation, discuss the plan for Housing Counseling services and pre-purchase education for homebuyers.  Who will provide this training?  How will buyers be located and qualified?  What type of waiting lists exists for purchase of these types of properties and where, in the qualification process, do these persons fall?
	     


Management
C-7. Describe the plan for management of this project.  How will the applicant own or control the property during the course of construction? Discuss their qualifications. For rental projects, provide the long-term plan for ownership and operation of the property. 
	     


[bookmark: _Toc314560671]Community Service Facility Proposal 
CDBG assistance is available up to $700,000 for Community Service Facilities which are physical facilities targeting the provision of important services to low- and moderate-income persons and the greater community.  
CDBG funds are not to be used to construct office and/or service delivery space for local or state operated entities (like DSS, VDH, etc.).  Generic “community centers”, such as facilities which offer recreation and general community meeting space, are a low priority for Virginia’s CDBG Program.  While eligible, these types of projects usually do not rank well in our competitive evaluation process.  Projects must provide targeted, directed services and programs, for which there is documented need and demand, to predominately low and moderate income persons.  We look for these types of projects and the services they provide to deliver palpable, measureable, positive change in the lives of the participants. See page 47 of the 2012 CDBG Program Design for additional information on Housing Rehabilitation projects.

Project need/opportunity and demand
D-1. Describe the existing level of services in the proposed service area for services targeted by this project.  Where, in relation to this project, are these service providers?  Detail the evidence of the need for additional services in this area in terms of distance to existing providers, unmet demand, etc.
	     


D-2. How do the proposed services target an unmet need in the service area?  Be specific about the proposed services and the target audience and how this fills a defined gap in service and does not create competition for existing service providers.
	     


D-3. Explain why this project is a community development priority to the applicant.  
	     


D-4. Provide evidence of the demand for the service.  Evidence of the need should be detailed above, but this question should provide evidence that there is a population ready and able to take advantage of this service once it is offered.  Detail how demand was determined (surveys, participation commitments, etc.).
	     





Project services
D-5. Detail all specific services to be offered at the facility and how each of these services is targeted to an LMI clientele.  Provide specific numbers of persons (not visits, but unique persons) expected to participate in each specific service.  Explain how this level of participation will lead directly to the outcomes identified in the Outcomes table on Page 6. 
	     



D-6. CDBG projects should target activities that lead to quantifiable, measurable outcomes, not passive, general service activities. Please discuss the plan to track the delivery of services. 
	     



Operation Plan
D-7. Provide an operations plan for the facility.  Who will own the facility?  Who will manage the facility?  How will staff be recruited and put in place to run the facility, including a listing of proposed staffing needs? How were equipment and furnishing needs determined and how will these needs be met?  Provide a pro forma and long term operations plan to show how the services will continue as a viable operation in the future.
	     


D-8. How will the applicant own or control the property during the course of construction?
	     





[bookmark: _Toc314560672]Competitive Economic Development Proposals
Economic Development projects under the competitive round can address either the LMI National Objective (Job Creation and Development Readiness) or the Elimination of Slum and Blight Objective (Business District Revitalization and Site Redevelopment).  
CDBG assistance is available under the following categories:
	BUSINESS DISTRICT REVITALIZATION 
	Under this option, an applicant may target the revitalization of a downtown or other commercial district.  Applicants must have in place an Economic Restructuring Plan to help ensure the long-term success and viability of the project.  
Applicants must provide a clear definition of what criteria they are using to classify “blight” and clearly show where the blight removal will take place within the project area.  In order to be eligible for construction funding, applicants must demonstrate that at least 25 percent of the properties in the potential project area are physically blighted or have at least a 50% vacancy rate.

	JOB CREATION AND RETENTION 
	CDBG funding is available in support of the creation or retention of permanent, full-time jobs where at least 51% of the jobs involve the employment of LMI persons.  Only projects involving commercial development or that will benefit a commercial enterprise, sheltered-workshop, or other non-basic industry should be submitted as a Competitive Economic Development project.
The availability and amount of CDBG funding will depend upon the number of jobs projected to be created.  In general, CDBG participation will be limited to $10,000 per job.  In situations where the local economy is diversified CDBG participation may be allowed up to $25,000 per job.  

	Off-site 

	CDBG funds may be invested for installation or expansion of off-site public infrastructure that is serving a site where an industry is locating or expanding.  Applicants must prove a clear need for the off-site improvements and show justification for their scope and scale through a Preliminary Engineering Report and other analyses.  

	On-site 
	CDBG funding is available for certain on-site improvements in support of a business creating jobs and completing private investment in an eligible locality.  On-site CDBG assistance is offered to localities in the form of a loan and the locality is responsible for making the assistance available as a loan to assisted businesses.  
Competitive Grant proposals with on-site improvements are subject to underwriting (as assistance would be in the form of a loan to the applicant locality).  Any locality applying for on-site assistance must request and complete an Appropriate Determination package and submit it to DHCD by February 24, 2012.

	SITE REDEVELOPMENT 
	This project category option targets sites which have been rendered unmarketable or unusable by previous uses and which have conditions having an impact beyond the boundaries of the site.  CDBG assistance may be utilized to correct identified conditions, provided they are justified as blight in accordance with earlier guidance.  

	DEVELOPMENT READINESS 
	This category allows for the completion of improvements which will result in the future creation of businesses and job opportunities providing primary benefit to low- and moderate-income persons.  The focus of this category is on removing barriers to economic investment, particularly in areas of distress.  


For regional projects, please answer additional questions on Page 33 of the application
[bookmark: _Toc314560673]Business District Revitalization proposal
Please be sure the answers to Project opportunity and Demand questions on Pages 3–5 specifically describe the boundaries of the business district, why and how those boundaries were chosen, how the completion of proposed activities will contribute to the elimination of long-term economic blight, and summarize how the projected outcomes relate to the applicant’s economic restructuring plan.   
Economic Restructuring Plan
E-1. Provide a brief summary of the Economic Restructuring Plan developed for this project.  Explain how this plan: 1) Takes into account the historical and current economic conditions of the area; 2) Provides a description of what the Town will look and feel like at the completion of the effort; 3) Provides a community / local brand that can be marketed through the implementation of this project; 4) What is the local vision for the community and how does this vision impact the ER plan?; 5) Discuss how community assets will be commoditized. 
	     


E-2. Explain how the proposed project activities, as identified on Page 6, directly relate to the Economic Restructuring Plan. What will be fundamentally different following the completion of this project?
	     


E-3. Describe how the Economic Restructuring Plan will be implemented.  In particular identify: 1) Who will be responsible for implementing each activity identified?; 2) What are the key milestones for implementing the plan?;  3) Will existing businesses be making changes (extended hours, expansion) to contribute to the economic revitalization?
	     


E-4. How will the economic restructuring strategy provide long-term economic development benefits to the project area? In particular identify: 1) What is the marketing strategy the locality will use?; 2) What other funds are being used and how will they be used?; 3) How will new businesses be recruited?
	     



Blight
E-5. How was blight identified for this proposal? What is the locality’s definition of blight? Discuss how the identified level of blight meets the threshold for BDR funding.
	     


E-6. How was the blight quantified and identified in the development of this proposal? Provide a table that identified all blighted structures and areas within the project area.
	     


E-7. Have all property owners agreed to address blighted properties? What actions will be taken to enforce this? 
	     


E-8. Identify how this project addresses all the blight identified for this project area.  How will these areas impact the economic revitalization?  What is the plan for addressing additional blight beyond the scope of this project?
	     


E-9.  Is a façade improvement program being proposed? If so, discuss the terms of the façade match program and document the work owners have already done, including when these improvements were made.
	     


Financial tools
E-10. Describe incentives for private participation or investment in this effort.  How will the financial incentives be made available for physical or business improvements?
	     


E-11. Is there a need for a loan pool to encourage business development / creation?  If so, how has this demand been quantified?  Are there letters of interest?  Who will administer the loan pool and what are the expected terms?  What efforts have been made to create linkages with local small business education?
	     


E-12. If a revolving loan fund is to be created, provide information on the disposition of funds.  This should include: 1) What are the loan terms?  DHCD’s default terms are 10 years at 3% interest.  Applicants must negotiate any deviations from this standard. 2) What are the underwriting criteria for the loans? 3) Who will serve on the loan committee? 4)What will the functions of the loan committee be?
	     



Other Resources
E-13. Identify other resources which will be utilized to remove blighting elements and enhance the economic environment of the target area.  Identify all funding sources and explain the investment targets of each.  Identify, also, non-cash resources, such as the use of a local building official in enforcing the Uniform Building Code.  How will these other resources fill the gap between the total needs of the target area and the needs that can be covered with CDBG funding?
	     


Potential Obstacles
E-14. Discuss any regulatory, environmental, historical or similarly physical obstacles which may exist towards implementation of this project.  For example, are street enhancements or realignment plans being considered?    
	     



E-15. Describe the downtown organization that will sustain further activities. If one does not currently exist, what is the potential to develop such an organization? Is the organization an affiliate of the Virginia Main Street (VMS) Program? What VMS workshops/trainings have been attended in the last two years?
	     



Real Property Redevelopment
E-16. If the project involves the rehabilitation of or creation of housing, provide credible evidence of the viability of the housing in this community.  This should at least include cost estimates, evidence of the demand, probability of occupancy by LMI persons, landlord agreements, etc.  Identify how the units to be served in this proposal were selected.  Include a copy of the prioritization system used and a ranking of the properties considered for this proposal.
	     



E-17. Describe the real property acquisition activities in this project.  Specify the parcels or properties targeted and the extent to which the owner has been made aware of the wish to purchase.  Will acquisition occur in order to accomplish blight removal?  How were these properties targeted?  Discuss the availability of the targeted properties and the willingness and commitment of current owners to participate in the project.  Describe the process used to establish the fair market value.
	     



E-18. Discuss the end uses of the real property to be acquired during this project. Will such property be targeted for passive or active uses? What are the proposed uses?  What improvements will be made?  Will any properties be resold?
	     



E-19. Discuss how the new uses will meet a National Objective. 
	     


E-20. Discuss the locality’s awareness of Title 36, Article 7 of the Code of Virginia.  See Area Determination on page 42 of the Program Design for more information.  Identify any contact the locality has had with a Redevelopment and Housing Authority in Virginia to obtain its services in implementation of a Redevelopment Plan or Conservation Plan if one need be developed in the future.  Describe the extent of local political will to, if necessary, adopt a Redevelopment or Conservation Plan and execute an agreement with a Virginia Redevelopment and Housing Authority to carry it out.  
	     





[bookmark: _Toc314560674]Job Creation Proposal
If the applicant is proposing a loan program as part of a BDR project, completing this section is not required. 
Business Information
F-1. Provide the full business name, contact information and business activities for the business or businesses to be assisted.
	[bookmark: _Toc313620673][bookmark: _Toc314560675]Business Name
	[bookmark: _Toc313620674][bookmark: _Toc314560676]Business Address
	[bookmark: _Toc313620675][bookmark: _Toc314560677]duns Number
	[bookmark: _Toc313620676][bookmark: _Toc314560678]Business Phone
	[bookmark: _Toc313620677][bookmark: _Toc314560679]Business Activities
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	(   )     -     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	(   )     -     
	     

	     
	     
	     
	(   )     -     
	     


F-2. Provide details on all the activities which will occur at the facility to be assisted under this project. Be sure to note which activities will be targeted for CDBG assistance. 
	     


Business Investment
F-3. What is the amount and type of investment to be provided locally by the assisted business or businesses? 
	     


F-4. What is the employment level at other facilities operated by the assisted business in Virginia? 
	     


Jobs Summary
F-5. In the table below, provide the total number of jobs to be created and/or retained, using Full Time Equivalencies, and the percent of jobs that will be for LMI individuals. 
	[bookmark: _Toc313620678][bookmark: _Toc314560680]Total Jobs Created
	[bookmark: _Toc313620679][bookmark: _Toc314560681]Total Jobs Retained
	[bookmark: _Toc313620680][bookmark: _Toc314560682]Total Jobs for LMI
	[bookmark: _Toc313620681][bookmark: _Toc314560683]% Jobs for LMI
	[bookmark: _Toc313620682][bookmark: _Toc314560684]CDBG Assistance/Job

	20
	0
	11
	55%
	$5,000

	0
	0
	0
	0%
	$0.00

	0
	0
	0
	0%
	$0.00



F-6. Discuss the low-and-moderate income benefit of this project (i.e. higher wages, further education and training available) and the effort that will be made to ensure 51% of the jobs are available to or held by LMI individuals. Detail the targeting and intake activities associated with the project. 
	     



Training 
F-7. Will the assisted businesses be providing job training? If so, what will that training involve? Who will be involved in providing the training (e.g. local adult education classes, community colleges)?
	     



Project Scope and Funding
F-8. Discuss the need for CDBG funding for this project. Have other funding mechanisms been explored? Are the improvements of a scope and scale consistent with the stated needs of the business? If the project involves roads, please discuss the role of Industrial Road Access funds in the project. 
	     



Competitive Grant proposals with on-site improvements are subject to underwriting (as assistance would be in the form of a loan to the applicant locality).  Any locality applying for on-site assistance must request and complete an Appropriate Determination package and submit it to DHCD by February 24, 2012. 

Impact on Community
F-9. How will this project impact other businesses in the community?  How does the project fit in with future growth and development?
	     





[bookmark: _Toc314560685]Site Redevelopment Proposal
Applicants for Site Redevelopment assistance must detail the conditions and demonstrate local consensus that the conditions, real or perceived, exist and are a local priority. Please be sure that the project information, opportunities and demand and products and outcomes are clearly detailed in your answers to these questions on Pages 3- 6 of the application. 

Participation
G-1. Describe any incentives for private participation or investment in this project. How will financial incentives be made available for physical or business improvements?  How will individual business operations and cooperation among businesses be encouraged?
	     


G-2. Is there an organization dedicated to economic revitalization in this area or other group of stakeholders involved? Describe their role, who is involved and how this group will be developed to ensure the project stays on track. What will be the ongoing economic development marketing and coordination efforts? What are the plans for recruiting new businesses? 
	     



Local Economic Development Strategy and Marketing
G-3. Discuss the plan for business renewal and development in the target area. Is there a strategic economic development plan for this area? If so, please summarize the main elements of the plan and discuss how CDBG funds will support this plan. 
	     



Project Management
G-4. Site redevelopment activities can only occur on publically owned properties. Discuss the current ownership of the property, if there is a plan for public acquisition and any associated costs. 
	     



Barriers and opportunities
G-5. Discuss any barriers to investment that exist on the site. Is this project addressing a brownfield? Are there any existing structures that will be modified or demolished? Will the previous owner contribute to the clean-up/remediation?
	     


G-6. Discuss the opportunities and provide evidence of demand for investment on this site.  What is the potential for re-use? What is the timeframe for job-creation potential and private investment in the site? Provide evidence of the level of commitment. 
	     



Security of CDBG Funding
G-7. CDBG assistance for site redevelopment activities is offered to localities as a loan. Discuss how the locality will ensure that CDBG funding will be fully recovered according to program requirements. 
	     





[bookmark: _Toc314560686]Development Readiness Proposal
Applicants for Development Readiness assistance must document barriers to investment, detail how project activities will result in the creation of job opportunities for primarily low- and moderate-income individuals and show that development readiness is a local priority. Please be sure that this is clearly discussed in answers to the Project Information, Project Opportunities and Demand and Project Products and Outcomes questions on Pages 3- 6 of the application.  For more information on Development Readiness projects, please refer to page 38 of the 2012 Program Design.  

Barriers and Opportunities
H-1. Discuss any barriers to investment that exist on the site. Is this project addressing a brownfield? Are there any existing structures that will be modified or demolished? Will the previous owner contribute to the clean-up/remediation?
	[bookmark: Text74]     


H-2. Discuss the opportunities and provide evidence of demand for investment on this site. 
	     



Project Activities and Management
H-3. How will project activities contribute to the removal of the barriers discussed above and build on opportunities for investment? 
	     


H-4. If this project is addressing a brownfield, what are the environmental and health-related issues? What has been the impact of this (e.g. an investor has chosen not to invest because of suspected contamination)?
	     


H-5. Site redevelopment activities can only occur on publically owned properties. Please discuss the current ownership of the property and if there is a plan for public acquisition and any associated costs.
	     






Job Creation
H-6. Discuss the number and type of jobs to be created following disposition of the improved site or building. Please discuss the timeframe for job creation and evidence of commitment. The number must meet or exceed the thresholds for job creation in Distressed, Transitional and Competitive localities (see 2012 Program Design Page 55). 
	     



Local Economic Development Strategy and Marketing
H-7. Discuss the plan for business renewal and development in the target area. Is there a strategic economic development plan for this area? If so, please summarize the main elements of the plan and discuss how CDBG funds will support this plan. 
	     


H-8. What will be the ongoing economic development marketing and coordination efforts? What are the plans for recruiting new businesses? Is there an organization dedicated to economic revitalization in this area?
	     



Security of CDBG Funding
H-9. CDBG assistance for development readiness activities is offered to localities as a loan. Discuss how the locality will ensure that CDBG funding will be fully recovered according to program requirements. 
	     



[bookmark: _Toc314560687]
REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS
If planning or implementation activities occur in or concern multiple localities they may be considered regional. For regional projects, one local government must be designated the lead locality and all participating localities must enter into a legally binding cooperative agreement. Non-industrial projects with a significant regional impact that result in job creation are eligible for up to $1,200,000 in CDBG assistance. See Pages 16-17 in the 2012 Program Design for more information. Please contact DHCD in advance if submitting an application for a regional economic development project.  
If applying for a Regional Economic Development project, please answer the following questions in addition to the questions above for the specific project category. 
I-1. Describe the regional impact and how this project fits into the vision of the region. What is the broader economic impact beyond initial job creation?
	     


I-2. What support has been demonstrated by the local government entities involved?
	     


I-3. Have feasibility and impact studies been completed? Summarize the results. 
	     





[bookmark: _Toc314560688]Community Facility Proposal
Community facilities include water services and wastewater services.  CDBG assistance under this option is generally targeted to projects involving water and wastewater improvements, particularly those involving new services to low- and moderate-income persons.  Community Facility projects are eligible for up to $1,000,000 of CDBG funding.
Applicants which include water and/or sewer service activities in the design of a project, regardless of the project type, must meet the following requirements:
1. Service must be made available to any house within the project area that is occupied by an LMI household located within 200’ of the distribution (water) or collector (sewer) line provided the cost of installing said connection line does not exceed $3,500.  This service must be made available to said LMI household without cost to the household. This requirement does not apply to the monthly user fees based on the rates applicable to all customers.
1. Water meters are required for each customer that connects to the CDBG supported utility line (mobile home park owners are considered a single customer);
· The CDBG investment per utility connection may not exceed an average of $12,500 for water service or $15,000 for sewer service.
· Low- and moderate-income persons cannot be charged an access fee for facilities developed using CDBG funding and neither are these fees CDBG-eligible expenses.  The actual physical costs of connections will be eligible for CDBG funding.
The demand for services must be established through obtaining signed user agreements from the proposed beneficiaries or documenting a local mandatory hook-up policy and its history of enforcement.  See page 47 of the 2012 CDBG Program Design for additional information on Housing Rehabilitation projects.
Applicants for Community Facility assistance must show that community facilities are a community development priority. Please be sure that this is clearly discussed in answers to the Project Information, Project Opportunities and Demand and Project Products and Outcomes questions on pages 3-6 of the application.  
Facility Information
J-1. Is assistance being sought for a new system or an upgrade of an existing system? If it is for an existing system, why has the system not been maintained properly? 
	     


J-2. Will systems be consolidated under this project? If so, why? Who will own the consolidated system? What are the benefits of consolidation? 
	     


J-3. Discuss why CDBG funding is necessary for this project. What other funding alternatives exist? How would these sources affect the overall cost and affordability of the service? Please see page 45 of the 2012 Program Design for specific guidelines and funding thresholds. 
	     


J-4. Provide financial data for the entire water or wastewater system. This data should highlight revenues and expenses and support your ability to provide long-term operations and maintenance for the proposed system. 
	[bookmark: Text73]     


Usage and Users
J-5. What is the capacity of the locality’s system as permitted? What is the typical number of gallons per day (gpd) metered at the treatment plant or supply source? How much additional demand is expected (in gpd)?
	     


J-6. Provide information on the number of in-locality and out-of-locality users 1, 5 and 10 years ago. Indicate the number of present users by residential, industrial and commercial connection. How many of each type of user is expected to be added?
	[bookmark: _Toc313620687][bookmark: _Toc314560689]User Type
	[bookmark: _Toc313620688][bookmark: _Toc314560690]Year
	[bookmark: _Toc313620689][bookmark: _Toc314560691]New Users Expected

	
	2010
	2006
	2001
	

	In-Locality 
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Residential
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Commercial
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Industrial
	0
	0
	0
	0



	Out-of-Locality
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Residential
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Commercial
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Industrial
	0
	0
	0
	0





J-7. Using the embedded spreadsheet below, provide the following information for all households in the project area: A unique identifier, address, occupancy status, if the income survey has been completed, LMI status, and if a user agreement has been signed. 
To enter information, please right click on the Survey Results Table below and select Worksheet Option: Open to launch the Excel spreadsheet. When you close out of the worksheet your changes will be saved in this document. Once the information has been entered, print from the open workbook and attach the form in Attachment 4 as instructed on page 18. 
Survey Results Table



J-8. How many user agreements have been signed by project area residents? (Water projects should obtain user agreements from at least 80% of all households in the project area; wastewater projects should obtain at least 75%).
	     



Fees and Rates
J-9. Fill in the connection fee will be charged for each type – commercial, residential and industrial.
	[bookmark: _Toc313620690][bookmark: _Toc314560692]Type
	[bookmark: _Toc313620691][bookmark: _Toc314560693]Fee

	Residential
	$0.00

	Commercial
	$0.00

	Industrial
	$0.00



J-10. Low and moderate income individuals cannot be charged a connection fee to facilities developed with CDBG assistance – access and connection fees are not eligible program costs. Will these fees be waived for LMI individuals? If not, what sources will be used to cover these costs?
	     


J-11. Describe the rate structure that will apply to project customers when the project is completed. Will the project area structure be different from the existing system? Is there an availability ordinance in place (mandatory hook-up)? 
	     



J-12. Provide information on system rates for in-locality and out-of-locality users 1, 5 and 10 years ago. What is the current monthly rate? When was the last rate increase?
	[bookmark: _Toc313620692][bookmark: _Toc314560694]User Type
	[bookmark: _Toc313620693][bookmark: _Toc314560695]Year
	[bookmark: _Toc313620694][bookmark: _Toc314560696]Last rate increase

	
	2011
	2010
	2006
	2001
	

	In-Locality 

	Residential
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	     

	Commercial
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	     

	Industrial
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	     




	Out-of-Locality

	Residential
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	     

	Commercial
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	     

	Industrial
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$0.00
	     


J-13. If project area residents are dependent on a source or treatment provided by another system, provide evidence that the service will be provided. 
	     


Indoor Plumbing
J-14. How many LMI households lack indoor plumbing? How was this determined? What provisions are being made to provide indoor plumbing to LMI households in the project area and ensure that the units will be brought to DHCD Housing Quality Standards?
	     


J-15. What type of wastewater system is going to be used? Who will own and operate this system?
	     


Project Readiness
J-16. What is the status of final plans prepared for this project? Do they have approval by the appropriate regulatory agency? What is the status of necessary permits? Please attach a copy of the approval letter and any written comments on the PER. 
	     


J-17. How many easements must be acquired for the project? What is the status and plan for any necessary acquisition of easements or parcels?
	     



[bookmark: _Toc309655750][bookmark: _Toc314560697]Appendix A - Virginia CDBG Program Eligible Localities


Cities
Bedford
Buena Vista
Covington
Emporia
Franklin
Galax
Lexington
Martinsville
Norton
Poquoson
Salem
Staunton
Waynesboro
Williamsburg





Counties
Accomack
Albemarle
Alleghany
Amelia
Amherst
Appomattox
Augusta
Bath
Bedford
Bland
Botetourt
Brunswick
Buchanan
Buckingham
Campbell
Caroline
Carroll
Charles City
Charlotte
Clarke
Craig
Culpeper
Cumberland
Dickenson
Dinwiddie
Essex
Fauquier
Floyd
Fluvanna
Franklin
Frederick
Giles
Gloucester
Goochland
Grayson
Greene
Greensville
Halifax
Hanover
Henry

Highland
Isle of Wight
James City County
King and Queen
King George
King William
Lancaster
Lee
Louisa
Lunenburg
Madison
Mathews
Mecklenburg
Middlesex
Montgomery
Nelson
New Kent
Northampton
Northumberland
Nottoway
Orange
Page
Patrick
Pittsylvania
Powhatan
Prince Edward
Prince George
Pulaski
Rappahannock
Richmond
Roanoke
Rockbridge
Rockingham
Russell
Scott
Shenandoah
Smyth
Southampton
Spotsylvania

Stafford
Surry
Sussex
Tazewell
Warren
Washington
Westmoreland
Wise
Wythe
York











Towns
Abingdon
Accomack
Alberta
Altavista
Amherst
Appalachia
Appomattox
Ashland
Belle Haven
Berryville
Big Stone Gap
Blackstone
Bloxom
Bluefield
Boones Mill
Bowling Green
Boyce
Boydton
Boykins
Branchville
Bridgewater
Broadway
Brodnax
Brookneal
Buchanan
Burkeville
Cape Charles
Capron
Cedar Bluff
Charlotte Court H.
Chase City
Chatham
Cheriton
Chilhowie
Chincoteague
Claremont
Clarksville
Cleveland
Clifton Forge
Clinchco
Clinchport
Clintwood
Coeburn
Colonial Beach
Columbia

Courtland
Craigsville
Crewe
Culpeper
Damascus
Dayton
Dendron
Dillwyn
Drakes Branch
Dublin
Duffield
Dungannon
Eastville
Edinburg
Elkton
Exmore
Farmville
Fincastle
Floyd
Fries
Front Royal
Gate City
Glade Spring
Glasgow
Glen Lyn
Gordonsville
Goshen
Gretna
Grottoes
Grundy
Halifax
Hallwood
Hamilton
Haysi
Hillsboro
Hillsville
Honaker
Hurt
Independence
Iron Gate
Irvington
Ivor
Jarratt
Jonesville
Keller

Kenbridge
Keysville
Kilmarnock
La Crosse
Lawrenceville
Lebanon
Louisa
Lovettsville
Luray
Madison
Marion
McKenney
Melfa
Middleburg
Middletown
Mineral
Monterey
Montross
Mount Jackson
Mount Crawford
Narrows
Nassawaddox
New Castle
New Market
Newsoms
Nickelsville
Onancock
Onley
Orange
Painter
Pamplin City
Parksley
Pearisburg
Pembroke
Pennington Gap
Phenix
Pocahontas
Port Royal
Pound
Pulaski
Purcellville
Remington
Rich Creek
Richlands
Ridgeway

Rocky Mount
Round Hill
Rural Retreat
Saltville
Saxis
Scottsburg
Scottsville
Shenandoah
Smithfield
South Boston
South Hill
St. Charles
St. Paul
Stanardsville
Stanley
Stephens City
Stony Creek
Strasburg
Stuart
Surry
Tangier
Tappahannock
Tazewell
The Plains
Timberville
Toms Brook
Troutdale
Troutville
Urbanna
Victoria
Vinton
Virgilina
Wachapreague
Wakefield
Warrenton
Warsaw
Washington
Waverly
Weber City
West Point
White Stone
Windsor
Wise
Woodstock
Wytheville

[bookmark: _Toc314560698][bookmark: _Ref314571070]Appendix B – Citizen Participation
For All Potential Local Government Applicants:
It is important that community development projects carried out wholly or in part with Virginia Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds involve extensive citizen participation during the proposal development process.  Local citizen participation should be encouraged throughout the process of developing a Community Improvement Grant (CIG) proposal.  In particular, participation by low- and moderate-income (LMI) residents of the project service area or a slum and blight area should be encouraged.  Participation is encouraged prior to submitting a Planning Grant proposal, but there are no firm requirements.  

The following steps, however, are required for each local government wishing to submit a Community Improvement Grant proposals, including both competitive round projects and projects being submitted under the open submission funds.  
[bookmark: _Toc210124019][bookmark: _Toc210124128][bookmark: _Toc210194522][bookmark: _Toc247607635][bookmark: _Toc306361975][bookmark: _Toc314560699]Public Hearing Requirement
At a minimum, at least two public hearings must be held during the CIG proposal development period.  
· The two hearings must, at a minimum, be held one week apart.  
· Advertisements for the two public hearing must be published separately.  Applicants may not only publish one advertisement that includes information on both public hearings.  
· Both public hearings must be held within twelve months of the application deadline (defined by DHCD in 2012 as after March 31, 2011).  In the case of the same proposal being resubmitted from the prior competitive year, DHCD may waive the public hearing requirement on community development needs (first public hearing).  
· Files must be maintained containing documentary evidence that the hearings were held, to include at a minimum a list of attendees, minutes of the hearings, and notices (2 types) of the public hearings.
· For regional proposals, each participating locality must hold two public hearings as described above. 
· Applicants must provide timely written answers to written comments and grievances, within 15 working days where practicable.

Each hearing must be held after adequate notice as described below:
[bookmark: _Toc210124020][bookmark: _Toc210124129][bookmark: _Toc210194523][bookmark: _Toc247607636][bookmark: _Toc306361976][bookmark: _Toc314560700]Notice of Public Hearings
Advertisement must be made in a non‑legal, locally‑circulated newspaper with the largest general circulation at least seven days prior to each hearing.  The public hearing notices must provide the address, phone number, TDD, and times for submitting comments and grievances to the applicant locality.  If publishing in a weekly paper, be sure the ads are published in such a manner as to comply with the requirements outlined here.  
At least one other type of announcement must be done for each public hearing (examples below), at times and locations convenient to potential or actual beneficiaries, and with accommodation for the handicapped.  
· Advertisement through locally‑received radio and/or television stations;
· Distribution of flyers in LMI areas and in the proposed service area(s);
· Announcements at local community organization meetings; or,
· Announcements through local churches and community centers located in LMI and proposed project areas.
[bookmark: _Toc210123670][bookmark: _Toc210124021][bookmark: _Toc210124130][bookmark: _Toc210194524][bookmark: _Toc306361977][bookmark: _Toc314560701]First Public Hearing
The first hearing must be held early in the CIG proposal development process to identify the applicant's community development and housing needs, the range of eligible project types funded through the CDBG program and the amount of money available to the applicant, as well as the applicant's past performance (if applicable) in the CDBG program during the previous five years.  At a minimum citizens should be furnished with information concerning the amount of funds available (including program income) for proposed activities and the range of activities that may be undertaken, including the estimated amount to be used for activities that will benefit low- and moderate-income persons, the proposed CDBG activities likely to result in displacement,  and plans for minimizing displacement of persons as a result of the CDBG project, and plans to assist persons actually displaced by the project. 	

Between the two hearings applicants must make available to the public a fact sheet or proposal summary that identifies the proposed activities and objectives for the project and identifies who will be affected by these activities.  Citizens must have an opportunity to comment on this document.
[bookmark: _Toc210123671][bookmark: _Toc210124022][bookmark: _Toc210124131][bookmark: _Toc210194525][bookmark: _Ref274918495][bookmark: _Toc306361978][bookmark: _Toc314560702]Second Public Hearing
A second hearing must be held for public review of and comment on the final draft of the CIG proposal.  A final draft or detailed fact sheet presenting the key activities and eligible benefits of the project must be available at the second public hearing, if not before.
[bookmark: _Toc210124023][bookmark: _Toc210124132][bookmark: _Toc210194526][bookmark: _Toc247607637][bookmark: _Toc306361979][bookmark: _Toc314560703]Additional Citizen Participation Requirements
Local citizens should be provided with reasonable and timely access to local meetings, information, and records relating to the applicant locality's proposed and actual use of CDBG funds.  Meetings should be conducted according to the standards established for the public hearings cited below (#4).  CDBG-related information and records must be made available to interested citizens with the availability of such items announced at least in the same manner as the public hearing advertisements.  

Technical assistance must be provided to groups representative of persons of low- and moderate-income that request such assistance in developing proposals for use of CDBG funds.  The level and type of assistance is determined by the applicant locality but must include at least consultation and written communication between a local contact person responsible for the CDBG proposal's development and interested groups.  The name, address, and telephone number of the contact person(s) must be made available upon request and announced at all public meetings held on the CDBG proposal. 

Where 5 percent or more of public hearing participants can be reasonably expected to be non‑English speaking residents, applicants must take measures to accommodate their needs.  Census data on the proposed project area and on the locality as a whole should be consulted to determine if this provision applies in a particular instance.  Meeting this provision requires, at a minimum, having printed material available in the non‑English language(s) and retaining the services of an interpreter(s) for all CDBG-related meetings and public hearings.

An applicant with a current CIG project to which activities are to be added, deleted, or substantially changed (that is, substantial changes made in terms of purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries) must provide local citizens through a public hearing with an opportunity for comment on such changes, after the locality has informed citizens of the changes at least seven days prior to the hearing.  

Applicants must keep documentation of how they met the above requirement in their CDBG files for verification.  This documentation should include:
· Documentation of the Public Hearing advertisements,
· Documentation of the second method used to notify citizens of the public hearings,
· List of attendees,
· Minutes from the first hearing showing:
· Available funds,
· Available activities,
· Past use of CDBG funds,
· Minutes from the second hearing showing:
· Description of proposed activities,
· Plans to minimize displacement and assist displaced persons (if applicable), and
· Any requested special accommodations.

None of the foregoing may be construed to restrict the responsibility or authority of the local government applicant in the development and execution of its Community Improvement Grant project.



[bookmark: _Toc306361980]
[bookmark: _Toc314560704]Public Hearing Advertisements
These advertisements should be made in accordance with the Plan above.

Model Advertisement – First Public Hearing
(Locality) will hold a public hearing on (date) at (time) at (location) to solicit public input on local community development and housing needs in relation to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for a project in our community.

Information on the amount of funding available, the requirements on benefit to low- and moderate-income persons, eligible activities, and plans to minimize displacement and provide displacement assistance as necessary will be available.  Citizens will also be given the opportunity to comment on (locality’s) past use of CDBG funds.  All interested citizens are urged to attend.  For additional information, contact (local contact name and information).

Comments and grievances can be submitted in writing to (locality) at (address) or by phone at (phone number and TDD) until (cut-off date).      

If you plan to attend and have any special needs requirements, please call the number listed above.


Model Advertisement – Second Public Hearing
(Locality) will hold a public hearing on (date) at (time) at (location) to solicit public input on the proposed Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) proposal to be submitted to the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development for (project name).  Residents of the project area are encouraged to attend.  The (project name) proposal will include the following activities (list activities).  

The draft CDBG proposal will be presented for comment along with information on projected beneficiaries, including the number of low- and moderate-income residents to benefit from the proposed project, and plans to minimize displacement.  Citizens will also be given the opportunity to comment on (locality’s) past use of CDBG funds.  A fact sheet on the proposed project and the draft proposal is available at (location).  For additional information, contact (local contact name and information).

Comments and grievances can be submitted in writing to (locality) at (address) or by phone at (phone number and TDD) until (cut-off date).      

If you plan to attend and have any special needs requirements, please call the number listed above.


[bookmark: _Toc314560705]Appendix C – Income Limits
	2012 LMI Income Limits  - LMI Limit (80% of median)

	
	1 PERSON 
	2 PERSON
	3 PERSON
	4 PERSON
	5 PERSON
	6 PERSON
	7 PERSON
	8 PERSON

	Blacksburg-Christiansburg-Radford, VA MSA

	Blacksburg-Christiansburg-Radford, VA HNMFA
	       38,300 
	      43,800 
	      49,250 
	      54,700 
	      59,100 
	      63,500 
	      67,850 
	      72,250 

	Giles County, VA HMFA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Pulaski County, VA HMFA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Charlottesville, VA MSA
	       43,600 
	      49,800 
	      56,050 
	      62,250 
	      67,250 
	      72,250 
	      77,200 
	      82,200 

	Danville, VA MSA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Harrisonburg, VA MSA
	       34,000 
	      38,850 
	      43,700 
	      48,550 
	      52,450 
	      56,350 
	      60,250 
	      64,100 

	Kingsport-Bristol-Bristol, TN-VA MSA
	       28,150 
	      32,150 
	      36,150 
	      40,150 
	      43,400 
	      46,600 
	      49,800 
	      53,000 

	Lynchburg, VA MSA
	       33,700 
	      38,500 
	      43,300 
	      48,100 
	      51,950 
	      55,800 
	      59,650 
	      63,500 

	Richmond, VA MSA
	       42,350 
	      48,400 
	      54,450 
	      60,500 
	      65,350 
	      70,200 
	      75,050 
	      79,900 

	Louisa County, VA HMFA
	       36,500 
	      41,700 
	      46,900 
	      52,100 
	      56,300 
	      60,450 
	      64,650 
	      68,800 

	Richmond, VA HMFA
	       42,350 
	      48,400 
	      54,450 
	      60,500 
	      65,350 
	      70,200 
	      75,050 
	      79,900 

	Roanoke, VA MSA

	Franklin County, VA HMFA
	       31,500 
	      36,000 
	      40,500 
	      44,950 
	      48,550 
	      52,150 
	      55,750 
	      59,350 

	Roanoke, VA HMFA
	       35,400 
	      40,450 
	      45,500 
	      50,550 
	      54,600 
	      58,650 
	      62,700 
	      66,750 

	Virginia Beach-Norfolk-Newport News, VA-NC MSA
	       39,700 
	      45,400 
	      51,050 
	      56,700 
	      61,250 
	      65,800 
	      70,350 
	      74,850 

	Washington-Arlington-Alexandria, DC-VA-MD-WV MSA

	Warren County, VA HMFA
	       42,650 
	      48,750 
	      54,850 
	      60,900 
	      65,800 
	      70,650 
	      75,550 
	      80,400 

	Washington-Arlington-Alexandria, DC-VA-MD HMFA
	       49,200 
	      56,200 
	      63,250 
	      70,250 
	      75,900 
	      81,500 
	      87,150 
	      92,750 

	Winchester, VA-WV MSA
	       36,600 
	      41,800 
	      47,050 
	      52,250 
	      56,450 
	      60,650 
	      64,800 
	      69,000 

	Accomack County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Alleghany County-Clifton Forge city-Covington city, VA HNMFA
	       29,800 
	      34,050 
	      38,300 
	      42,550 
	      46,000 
	      49,400 
	      52,800 
	      56,200 

	Augusta County-Staunton city-Waynesboro city, VA HNMFA
	       33,500 
	      38,300 
	      43,100 
	      47,850 
	      51,700 
	      55,550 
	      59,350 
	      63,200 

	Bath County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Bland County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Brunswick County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Buchanan County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Buckingham County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Carroll County-Galax city, VA HNMFA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Charlotte County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Culpeper County, VA
	       44,000 
	      50,250 
	      56,550 
	      62,800 
	      67,850 
	      72,850 
	      77,900 
	      82,900 

	Dickenson County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Essex County, VA
	       30,750 
	      35,150 
	      39,550 
	      43,900 
	      47,450 
	      50,950 
	      54,450 
	      57,950 

	Floyd County, VA
	       30,150 
	      34,450 
	      38,750 
	      43,050 
	      46,500 
	      49,950 
	      53,400 
	      56,850 

	Grayson County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Greensville County-Emporia city, VA HNMFA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Halifax County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Henry County-Martinsville city, VA HNMFA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Highland County, VA
	       31,300 
	      35,800 
	      40,250 
	      44,700 
	      48,300 
	      51,900 
	      55,450 
	      59,050 

	King George County, VA
	       45,500 
	      52,000 
	      58,500 
	      65,000 
	      70,200 
	      75,400 
	      80,600 
	      85,800 

	Lancaster County, VA
	       31,850 
	      36,400 
	      40,950 
	      45,500 
	      49,150 
	      52,800 
	      56,450 
	      60,100 

	Lee County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Lunenburg County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Madison County, VA
	       37,000 
	      42,250 
	      47,550 
	      52,800 
	      57,050 
	      61,250 
	      65,500 
	      69,700 

	Mecklenburg County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Middlesex County, VA
	       36,050 
	      41,200 
	      46,350 
	      51,450 
	      55,600 
	      59,700 
	      63,800 
	      67,950 

	Northampton County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Northumberland County, VA
	       35,350 
	      40,400 
	      45,450 
	      50,500 
	      54,550 
	      58,600 
	      62,650 
	      66,700 

	Nottoway County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Orange County, VA
	       37,250 
	      42,600 
	      47,900 
	      53,200 
	      57,500 
	      61,750 
	      66,000 
	      70,250 

	Page County, VA
	       30,700 
	      35,100 
	      39,500 
	      43,850 
	      47,400 
	      50,900 
	      54,400 
	      57,900 

	Patrick County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Prince Edward County, VA
	       29,600 
	      33,800 
	      38,050 
	      42,250 
	      45,650 
	      49,050 
	      52,400 
	      55,800 

	Rappahannock County, VA
	       41,650 
	      47,600 
	      53,550 
	      59,450 
	      64,250 
	      69,000 
	      73,750 
	      78,500 

	Richmond County, VA
	       33,000 
	      37,700 
	      42,400 
	      47,100 
	      50,900 
	      54,650 
	      58,450 
	      62,200 

	Rockbridge County-Buena Vista city-Lexington city, VA HNMFA
	       31,100 
	      35,550 
	      40,000 
	      44,400 
	      48,000 
	      51,550 
	      55,100 
	      58,650 

	Russell County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Shenandoah County, VA
	       36,050 
	      41,200 
	      46,350 
	      51,450 
	      55,600 
	      59,700 
	      63,800 
	      67,950 

	Smyth County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Southampton County-Franklin city, VA HNMFA
	       33,500 
	      38,300 
	      43,100 
	      47,850 
	      51,700 
	      55,550 
	      59,350 
	      63,200 

	Tazewell County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Westmoreland County, VA
	       34,850 
	      39,800 
	      44,800 
	      49,750 
	      53,750 
	      57,750 
	      61,700 
	      65,700 

	Wise County-Norton city, VA HNMFA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 

	Wythe County, VA
	       29,500 
	      33,700 
	      37,900 
	      42,100 
	      45,500 
	      48,850 
	      52,250 
	      55,600 
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TOTAL CDBG NON-CDBG NON-CDBG

BUDGET LINE ITEM BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET SOURCE

ADMINISTRATION

  Execution of DHCD Contract 0.00

  Execution of Project Contract(s) 0.00

  Contract Monitoring 0.00

  Construction Completion 0.00

  Achievement of Benefits 0.00

  Administrative Project Closeout 0.00

Subtotal $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

INTERIM ASSISTANCE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

PERMANENT RELOCATION

  Owner-Occupied Households 0.00

  Renter-Occupied Households 0.00

  Relocation Specialist 0.00

Subtotal $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
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				TOTAL		CDBG		NON-CDBG		NON-CDBG

		BUDGET LINE ITEM		BUDGET		BUDGET		BUDGET		SOURCE



		ADMINISTRATION

		  Execution of DHCD Contract		0.00

		  Execution of Project Contract(s)		0.00

		  Contract Monitoring		0.00

		  Construction Completion		0.00

		  Achievement of Benefits		0.00

		  Administrative Project Closeout		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		INTERIM ASSISTANCE		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		PERMANENT RELOCATION

		  Owner-Occupied Households		0.00

		  Renter-Occupied Households		0.00

		  Relocation Specialist		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		ACQUISITION (Land/Improvements		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		  but not any easements)



		CLEARANCE & DEMOLITION		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		OWNER-OCCUPIED HOUSING REHABILITATION

		  Owner-Occupied Construction		0.00

		  Rehabilitation Specialist		0.00

		  Temporary Relocation		0.00

		  HMEP		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		INVESTOR-OWNED HOUSING REHABILITATION

		  Investor-Owned Construction		0.00

		  Rehabilitation Specialist		0.00

		  Temporary Relocation		0.00

		  HMEP		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		SUBSTANTIAL RECONSTRUCTION

		  Clearance & Demolition		0.00

		  Owner-Occupied Construction		0.00

		  Rehabilitation Specialist		0.00

		  Temporary Relocation		0.00

		  HMEP		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		HOMEOWNERSHIP CREATION

		  Downpayment Assistance		0.00

		  Closing Costs		0.00

		  Principal Write Down		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		SEWER/STORM DRAINAGE

		  Architect/Engineer/Design		0.00

		  Inspection		0.00

		  Acquisition (Easements Only)		0.00

		  Temporary Relocation		0.00

		  Construction/Improvements		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		WATER

		  Architect/Engineer/Design		0.00

		  Inspection		0.00

		  Acquisition (Easements Only)		0.00

		  Temporary Relocation		0.00

		  Construction/Improvements		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		STREETS

		  Architect/Engineer/Design		0.00

		  Inspection		0.00

		  Acquisition (Easements Only)		0.00

		  Temporary Relocation		0.00

		  Construction/Improvements		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		FLOOD DRAINAGE FACILITIES

		  Architect/Engineer/Design		0.00

		  Inspection		0.00

		  Acquisition (Easements Only)		0.00

		  Temporary Relocation		0.00

		  Construction/Improvements		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		MICROENTERPRISE ASSISTANCE

		  Business Skills Training 		0.00

		  Technical Assistance 		0.00

		  Microloan Program		0.00

		  Post-Loan Assistance		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		BUSINESS DISTRICT REVITALIZATION

		  Acquisition		0.00

		  Enhancements		0.00

		  Façade Improvements		0.00

		      Architect/Engineer/Design		0.00

		      Inspection		0.00

		      Construction/Improvements		0.00

		  Marketing/Website Development		0.00

		Subtotal		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00



		TOTAL		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00
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Household ID Address Occupied

Income Survey 

Complete LMIUser Agreement 

0001 4812 Creek Rd Yes Yes No Yes
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